
 
 

 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 
 
22 August 2017 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
 
A meeting of the Licensing Committee will be held in Council Chamber, Marmion 
House, Lichfield Street, Tamworth, B79 7BZ on Thursday, 31st August, 2017 at 
6.00 pm. Members of the Committee are requested to attend. 
 
 
Yours faithfully 
 

 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

NON CONFIDENTIAL 
 
 
1 Apologies for Absence  

2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 1 - 4) 

3 Declarations of Interest  

N0N-CONFIDENTIAL



 
To receive any declarations of Members’ interests (pecuniary and non-
pecuniary) in any matters which are to be considered at this meeting. 

 

When Members are declaring a pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in 
respect of which they have dispensation, they should specify the nature of 
such interest.  Members should leave the room if they have a pecuniary or 
non-pecuniary interest in respect of which they do not have a dispensation.   
 

 

4 Environment Health And Regulatory Service (EHRS) – Review Of Licensing 
Activity 2016/17 (Pages 5 - 8) 

 (The Report of the Corporate Director of Growth, Assets and Environment) 
 

5 Application For An Increase To Prescribed Hackney Carriage Fare Rates 
(Pages 9 - 22) 

 (The Report of the Corporate Director of Growth, Assets and Environment) 
 

 
 
 
People who have a disability and who would like to attend the meeting should contact 
Democratic Services on 01827 709265 or e-mail committees@tamworth.gov.uk  
preferably 24 hours prior to the meeting.  We can then endeavour to ensure that any 
particular requirements you may have are catered for. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To Councillors: A Lunn, T Clements, R Bilcliff, A Couchman, S Doyle, R Ford, M Gant, 
J Goodall, R Kingstone, K Norchi, M Oates, R Rogers and P Seekings. 



 

 

1  
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 
HELD ON 29th JUNE 2017 

 
 

 
PRESENT: Councillors A Lunn (Chair), T Clements (Vice-Chair), A 

Couchman, S Doyle, R Ford, M Gant, J Goodall, K Norchi, M 
Oates, R Rogers and P Seekings 

 
The following officers were present: Stephen Lewis (Head of Environmental 
Health), Paula Kelly (Environmental Health Officer) and Ryan Keyte (Senior 
Legal Officer) 
 
 

1 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR  
 
 
RESOLVED: That Councillor A Lunn be appointed as Chair 

 
 (Moved by Councillor M Oates and seconded by 

Councillor T Clements) 
 
 

2 APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIR  
 
 
RESOLVED: That Councillor T Clements be appointed as Vice-Chair 

 
 (Moved by Councillor A Lunn and seconded by 

Councillor R Rogers) 
 
 

3 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors R Bilcliff and R Kingstone 
 
 

4 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 2 March 2017 were approved and signed as 
a correct record. 
 
(Moved by Councillor A Lunn and seconded by Councillor T Clements) 
 
 

5 MINUTES OF LICENSING SUB HELD ON 24 AUGUST 2016  

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Licensing Committee 29 June 2017 

 

 

2 
 

 
 
The minutes of the meeting of Licensing Sub Committee held on 24 August 2016 
were approved and signed as a correct record. 
 
(Moved by Councillor M Oates and seconded by Councillor R Rogers) 
 
 

6 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
 
There were no Declarations of Interest. 
 
 

7 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
 
RESOLVED: That members of the press and public be now excluded 

from the meeting on the grounds that the business 
involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in Paragraph 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the 
Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) 
 

 (Moved by Councillor A Lunn and seconded by 
Councillor T Clements) 

 
 

8 LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1976 
SUITABILITY OF PERSON TO CONTINUE TO HOLD A HACKNEY 
CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE DRIVERS LICENCE  
 
 
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, Town Police Clauses Act 
1847, Private Hire and Hackney Carriage Driver Licenses – The Report of the 
Corporate Director of Growth, Assets and Environment 
 
RESOLVED: That Members considered the report and noted the 

contents and a decision was made accordingly 
 

 (This motion was moved and seconded) 
 
 

9 COMMITTEE REPORT FOR THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS 
PROVISIONS) ACT 1976 SUITABILITY OF PERSON TO CONTINUE TO HOLD 
A HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE DRIVERS LICENCE  
 
 
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, Town Police Clauses Act 
1847, Private Hire and Hackney Carriage Driver Licenses – The Report of the 
Corporate Director of Growth, Assets and Environment 
 

Page 2



Licensing Committee 29 June 2017 

 

 

3 
 

RESOLVED: That Members considered the report and noted the 
contents and a decision was made accordingly 
 

 ((This motion was moved and seconded) 
 
 

  

 Chair  
 

 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 

31 AUGUST 2017 
 
 REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR, GROWTH, ASSETS & 

ENVIRONMENT 
 
ENVIRONMENT HEALTH AND REGULATORY SERVICE (EHRS) – 
REVIEW OF LICENSING ACTIVITY 2016/17 

 
 
EXEMPT INFORMATION 
Nil 
 
PURPOSE 
To inform the committee about the Team’s enforcement and administration 
work this financial year 16-17 and endorse future work. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
That Licensing Committee note the content of the report and endorse future 
work for 2017-18. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
EHRS deals with the administration, principally of the Licensing regimes 
under the Licensing Act 2003 and Gambling Act 2005.   
In addition, it covers Taxi and Private Hire Licensing under Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 &1982.   
 
The Licensing Team also administer the licensing of scrap metal dealers and 
motor salvage businesses under The Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013.   
 
Street & House Collections show a gradual increase, this could be due to 
reductions in public sector funding a thus a resort to charities as an alternative 
funding stream.  
 
Six items have been before committee this year compared to nine in the 
previous year (not including information reports and polices for approval). 
These are explained later in the report. 
 
The team carries out enforcement, but is supported in this by other 
enforcement staff, principally Staffordshire Police, Trading Standards and Fire 
and Rescue Service.  
 
Compared to last year, licensing activity across the whole service remains the 
same. 
 
RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
No specific financial implications emanate from this report which provides a 
review of the Council’s Licensing Team’s enforcement and administration 
activities during 2016/17.  

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 
Crime And Disorder Reduction Implications 
One of the key licensing objectives is to prevent licensed premises from being 
a source of crime and disorder. The Licensing team inspects licensed 
premises and takes formal enforcement action in accordance with the 
Council’s enforcement policy. Thus the Licensing team plays its part in 
helping to drive down crime and which in turn will reduce fear of crime and 
ASB levels helping to promote a healthier, happier and more cohesive 
community. This will have efficiency benefits for adult social care and public 
health costs by keeping people healthier and more active for longer. 
 
LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS BACKGROUND 
The Licensing Team exercises the Council’s regulatory functions under the 
Local Government and Miscellaneous Provisions Act 1976 &1982; Licensing 
Act 2003, Gambling Act 2005 and the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013. This 
report reviews the work over the last financial year and provides information 
upon the various activities undertaken in fulfilment of the Council’s obligations.  
 
There are no immediate legal implications arising from this report. 
 
The Council will be at risk of legal challenge if its decision making process on 
determining applications is not transparent and evidentially based.  Also the 
Council will be at risk where a decision to take, or not to take, enforcement 
action does not follow the Authority’s published enforcement policy. 
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
A visibly effective taxi/licensing/gambling service links into the Corporate 
Priorities of Living a Quality Life, Growing Strong and Delivering Quality 
Services in Tamworth.  Furthermore measures to promote fair trading; reduce 
Crime and disorder enhances the attraction of Tamworth as a place to visit 
and run a business. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION  (2015-16 figures in brackets) 
The vast majority of its work relates to the Licensing Act 2003 and this 
financial year the Licensing Team dealt with: 
 
· Issued 304 (308) Premises Licence; 
· Issued 91 (99) personal licences; 
This includes Variation of Premises Licence and Designated Premises 
Supervisors; 
 
80 (88) Temporary Events Notices (TENS), of which 65 (69) standard and 15 
(19) were late; 
 
No premises license were revoked this year however, 1 was suspended 
following a review hearing. 
 
There are programmed visits by Trading Standards, Police Licensing and 
other officers to off licence premises, inspecting for illicit alcohol.  EHRS 
weekend late night visits to monitor the terminal hours for late night 

Page 6



refreshment and off-sales of alcohol. 
 
Licensing Staff continue to conduct out of hours visits as required with 
partners e.g. Police Licensing Officers.  
 
Tamworth Borough Council continues to chair and co-ordinate the 
Responsible Body Group, with representation from Staffordshire Police, 
Trading Standards, Staffordshire Fire and Rescue, Licensing Officers and 
Environmental Health, Environmental Protection meet to discuss Licensing 
matters, including possible problem premises.   
 
The team participated in an audit as part of the County safeguarding group 
and was 100% compliant when checks to ensure the robustness of the 
licence issuing process.   
 
Regretfully the use of data derived from accident and emergency department 
in reducing crime and disorder scheme was dissolved, however two premises 
were visited as a result of the scheme and their situation has improved. 
 
Gambling Act 2005 
 
20 Permits and or certificates were issued compared to 27 last year. 
 
Taxi Licensing (FY15-16 figures in brackets) 
 
The team dealt with 555 requests, compared to 505 last year, a 10% increase 
in activity.   
 
In these figures are the administered and issued; 
244 drivers licences (233) 
172 hackney Carriage licences (149) 
135 Private Hire Vehicles (117) 
4 Vehicle Operators (6) 
 
 
Scrap Metal 
The two existing scrap metal mobile dealers renewed their licences. 
 
 
Committee Work 
Six items were considered by this committee leading to the suspension of one 
premise licence; three written warnings for smoking and for failure to display 
and the rejection of two late TENs.  Overall, there has been a reduction in 
numbers going before committee, however, smoking remains a prevalent 
issue and we continue to focus our efforts on prevention; those caught are not 
re-offending. 
 
 
Key Strategic issues and impacts on 2016/17 operations 
The public profile of safeguarding was raised when further details of Oxford 

Page 7



and Rotherham were published.  The team assessed the impact on the taxi 
trade and all drivers attended safeguarding training.  
 
The emergence of immigration legislation and the implications for teams are 
currently being assessed.  While currently unknown if there will be a material 
impact upon workload there is a potential that workload will increase as a 
result of the need to coordinate and liaise with other Government Agencies.   
 
Papers on the use of accident and emergency data & online taxi-booking 
features were presented and their impact on the service remains under 
review. 
 
Future Issues 
Members are requested to endorse future work in the areas of safeguarding 
and the emerging awareness of immigration on our licensed premises in the 
future 
 
REPORT AUTHOR 
“If Members would like further information or clarification prior to the meeting 
please contact Steve Lewis, Head Of Environmental Health. Ext 437 
 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 

1. 2016/17 Return to Gambling Commission. 
2. 2016/17 Return to Home Office. 

 
APPENDICES 
Nil 
 
 

Page 8



 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 

 
 

THURSDAY, 31 AUGUST 2017 
 

 
 

REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR – GROWTH, ASSETS & ENVIRONMENT 
 
 

APPLICATION FOR AN INCREASE TO PRESCRIBED HACKNEY CARRIAGE FARE 
RATES 

 
 
 
EXEMPT INFORMATION 
 
No exempt information 
 
 
 
PURPOSE 
To consider an application from Tamworth Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Association 
for an increase in the prescribed Hackney Carriage fare rate. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1) That the Hackney Carriage fare rates, Appendix 3 be advertised so as to give Notice 
of the intention to increase hackney carriage fares to that shown.  
 
2) If no objections are received, the Director Growth & Assets be authorised to bring the 
new structure into force after 1st December 2017 on a day deemed suitable to re-calibrate all 
taxi-meters, however in the event of objections being received within 14 days from the 
publication of the advertisement, a further report be made to the next scheduled Licensing 
Committee to determine the proposal in the light of the objections. 
 
 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
In Tamworth, there are 231 hackney carriage and private hire drivers licensed by Tamworth 
Borough Council of which 126 are currently members of Tamworth Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire Association (THCPA), this represents a 54% membership. THCPA is a voluntary 
body that represents some of the drivers.  THCPA is the historical body that Tamworth 
Borough council recognises for the purpose of consultation, however it also equally recognises 
& consults the views of all drivers licensed by Tamworth Borough Council. 
 
Tamworth Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Association submitted an application for an 
increase in the prescribed fare rate as outlined in the background information of this report 
 
A tariff increase amounting to the following is applied for; ( Appendix 3) 
 
10 pence on the initial flag (370.526 yds)  
 
10 pence on the running mile (1760 yds) 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



Between midnight and 6am and Bank holidays 
 
15 pence on the initial flag (370.526 yds)  
15 pence on the running mile (1760 yds) 
 
 
A new tariff to apply between: 
 
Midnight on Christmas Eve and Midnight on Christmas day 
Midnight on New Year’s Eve to Midnight on New Year’s day 
 
£4.30 for the flag drop (370.526 yds) 
20 pence per running mile 
 

 
 
RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
The proposed increase, if granted would be advertised in the local press at a cost of 
£486.00p excluding VAT which can be met from existing budgets. 
 
 
 
 
LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS  
Councils must adopt taxi fares in a prescribed manner as contained with the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 providing that the procedure detailed in 
recommendations 1 & 2 are followed.  Keeping fares reasonable would encourage the use of 
taxis thereby reducing private vehicular use, and reducing pollution and congestion, 
however, if fares are set too high there is a risk that those most reliant on public transport are 
priced out of the market. 
 
EQUALITIES 
The fare structure specifically excludes extra charges made for the carriage of wheelchairs. 
The law prevents charges for assistance dogs. 
 
 
 
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
The taxi trade is an important part of the local economy and the level of fares directly impacts 
on those local businesses.   
 
 
 

Page 10



BACKGROUND INFORMATION   
 
Section 65 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 empowers the 
Council to fix fare rates for taxi services provided by hackney carriage proprietors licensed by 
the Authority. 
 
Tamworth Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Association have submitted an application for 
an increase in the prescribed hackney carriage fare rates. (Appendix 1). The current rates 
have not increased since November 2012 at which time an application for a 10p increase per 
mile between 06:00hrs and 24:00hrs and 15 per mile between 00:00 midnight and 06:00hrs 
was approved by Licensing Committee. (Appendix 2) 
 
The Association contends that apart from the above increase there has been no other 
increase in fare rates for almost five years. Although there has been a fall in the price of fuel 
since November 2012 to June 2017 Insurance and maintenance costs have risen and the 
Consumer Price Index (based on September figures used for pay rises) shows an increase 
over the last five years of 6.5%.  
 
A tariff increase amounting to the following is applied for; ( Appendix 3) 
 
10 pence on the initial flag (370.526 yds)  
 
10 pence on the running mile (1760 yds) 
 
Between midnight and 6am and Bank holidays 
 
15 pence on the initial flag (370.526 yds)  
15 pence on the running mile (1760 yds) 
 
 
A new tariff to apply between: 
 
Midnight on Christmas Eve and Midnight on Christmas day 
Midnight on New Year’s Eve to Midnight on New Year’s day 
 
£4.30 for the flag drop (370.526 yds) 
20 pence per running mile. 
 
 
This is an increase of 4.2% for the flag drop and 5.25% for the running mile, both lower than 
the CPI for the same period. See Appendix 4 and 5 for a comparison of Tariff Tables. 
 
Although this increase has been requested by the Taxi Association, this is the maximum fare 
that can charge for a hackney carriage within the Borough, however a lower fare can be 
charged at each driver’s discretion. 
 
 
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR 
 
Philip Cowley ext 674  
 
 
 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
 
 
APPENDICES 

Page 11



 
Appendix 1;  Letter from Tamworth Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Association               
requesting tariff increase 
 
Appendix 2; Current Hackney Carriage Tariff (Dated 01/10/2012) 
 
Appendix 3; Proposed Hackney Carriage Tariff 
 
Appendix 4; Comparison Tariff  Table 
 
Appendix 5; Comparison Chart of Tariffs with Local Authorities 
 
 

Page 12



Appendix 1

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



                                                                                                                                                                                             APPENDIX 2 

 

 

 

 

Borough of Tamworth 
Hackney Carriage  

Fare Rates 
28/11/2012 
HC Plate   

i) MILEAGE - RATE 1 - Between the hours of 06:00 and 23:59 

 For the first 370.526 yards (338.80897m), or part thereof 
 
 For each subsequent 92.63157 yards (84.70230m) or 

uncompleted part thereof 
 

£2.40 
 
 

£0.10p 

ii) MILEAGE - RATE 2 - Between the hours of midnight and 05:59  

 For the first 370.526 yards (338.80897m), or part thereof 
 
 For each subsequent 92.63157 yards (84.70230m) or 

uncompleted part thereof 
 

£3.30 
 
 

£0.15p 

iii) WAITING TIME 

 Waiting time only applies to: 
  
 i) any delay caused by the passenger when the taxi 

arrives 
 ii) when the passenger specifically asks the driver to 

wait 
 For each period of 1 minute or uncompleted part thereof 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

£0.20p 

iv) EXTRA CHARGES 

 The rate advertised at ii) above will also apply as 
follows: 

 For hirings commencing between 18:00 hours on 24 
December to 06:00 hours on 27 December or the day 
following Boxing Day, whichever is later and on New 
Years Day and all Bank Holidays 
 

 Fouling of Car  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

£80 at  
drivers 

discretion 
 

 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



                                                                                                                                                                         Appendix 3 

 

 

 

Borough of Tamworth 
Hackney Carriage  

Fare Rates 
HC Plate  

i) MILEAGE - RATE 1 - Between the hours of 06:00 and midnight 
 For the first 370.526 yards (338.80897m), or part thereof 
 

 For each subsequent 88 yards (80.4672m) or uncompleted 
part thereof 

 

£2.50 
 
 

£0.10 

ii) MILEAGE - RATE 2 - Between the hours of midnight & 05:59  
 For the first 370.526 yards (338.80897m), or part thereof 
 

 For each subsequent 88 yards (80.4672m) or uncompleted 
part thereof 

 

£3.45 
 
 

£0.15 

iii) MILEAGE - RATE 3  
Between the hours of midnight on 24 December & midnight on 25 
December & midnight on 31 December & midnight on 1 January 

 For the first 370.526 yards (338.80897m), or part thereof 
 

 For each subsequent 88 yards (80.4672m) or uncompleted 
part thereof 

 

£4.30 
 
 

£0.20 

iv) WAITING TIME 
 Waiting time only applies to: 
 i)  any delay caused by the passenger when the taxi arrives 
 ii) when the passenger specifically asks the driver to wait 
 For each period of 1 minute or uncompleted part thereof 
 

 
 
 

£0.20 

v) EXTRA CHARGES  
 The rate advertised at ii) above will also apply as follows: 
 For hirings commencing between 18:00 hours and midnight 

on 24 December and 1800 hours and midnight on 31 
December & midnight to midnight on all Bank Holidays 

  
 Fouling of Car 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

£80 at  
drivers 

discretion 
 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



                                                                                                                                                                                                               

Appendix 4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1
st

 Tariff Present  1st Tariff Proposed  

Flag Drop Flag Drop 
to 370.526 

yards 

£2.40  Flag Drop Flag Drop 
to 370.526 

yards 

£2.50 

Running Mile  Running Mile 

Increment 
(Yards)   

Yards Cost  Increment 
(Yards) 

Yards Cost 

92.63129 0 £0.00  88 0 £0.00 

 92.63129 £0.10   88 £0.10 

 185.2629 £0.20   176 £0.20 

 277.8944 £0.30   264 £0.30 

 370.5260 £0.40   352 £0.40 

 463.1576 £0.50   440 £0.50 

 555.7891 £0.60   528 £0.60 

 648.4207 £0.70   616 £0.70 

 741.0523 £0.80   704 £0.80 

 833.6839 £0.90   792 £0.90 

 926.3154 £1.00   880 £1.00 

 1018.947 £1.10   968 £1.10 

 1111.579 £1.20   1056 £1.20 

 1204.210 £1.30   1144 £1.30 

 1296.842 £1.40   1232 £1.40 

 1389.473 £1.50   1320 £1.50 

 1482.105 £1.60   1408 £1.60 

 1574.736 £1.70   1496 £1.70 

 1667.368 £1.80   1584 £1.80 

1 Mile 1760 £1.90   1672 £1.90 

    1 Mile 1760 £2.00 

Total Cost for journey 
of 1 mile and 370.526 
yards 

 
£4.30 

 

 Total Cost for journey 
of 1 mile and 370.526 
yards 

 
£4.50 

   

2
nd

 Tariff Present  2
nd

 Tariff Proposed 

Flag Drop Flag Drop 
to 370.526 
yards 

 
£3.30 

  Flag Drop 
to 370.526 
yards 

 
£3.45 

1 Mile 1760 £2.95  1 Mile 1760 £3.10 

Total Cost for journey 
of 1 mile and 370.526 
yards 

 
£6.25 

 Total Cost for journey 
of 1 mile and 370.526 
yards 

 
£6.55 

   

3
rd

 Tariff Present  3
rd

 Tariff Proposed 

Flag Drop Flag Drop 
to 370.526 
yards 

N/A  Flag Drop Flag Drop 
to 370.526 
yards 

 
£4.30 

1 Mile 1760 N/A  1 Mile 1760 £4.00 

Total Cost for journey 
of 1 mile and 370.526 
yards 

 
N/A 

 Total Cost for journey 
of 1 mile and 370.526 
yards 

 
£8.30 

 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



                                                                                                                                                              APPENDIX 5                                                                                   

 

Authority 2 Mile Fare Last Increase National League 
position out of 366 

North Warwickshire £5.80 2014 168  

Tamworth £5.80 2012 174  

Tamworth (proposed) £6.10 2017 116 

Lichfield £5.30 2012 273 

East Staffordshire £5.50 2008 230 

    

    

 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	4 Environment Health And Regulatory Service (EHRS) – Review Of Licensing Activity 2016/17
	5 Application For An Increase To Prescribed Hackney Carriage Fare Rates
	Appendix 1 Letter from Tamworth Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Association requesting tariff increase
	Appendix 2 Current Hackney Carriage Tariff (Dated 28/11/2012)
	Appendix 3 Proposed Hackney Carriage Tariff
	Appendix 4 Comparison Tariff Table
	Appendix 5 Comparison Chart of Tariffs with Local Authorities


